
A G E N D A
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building F Work Session Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
April 1, 2020
5:30 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. MINUTES

1. January 22, 2020 Meeting Minutes

2. February 19, 2020 Meeting Minutes

D. OLD BUSINESS

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. SITE PLAN200012. Axe Throwing Lanes Facility at Freedom Park

F. ADJOURNMENT



AGENDA ITEM NO. C.1.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 4/1/2020 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Paul D. Holt, III, Secretary

SUBJECT: January 22, 2020 Meeting Minutes

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type
Minutes of the January 22, 2020 DRC
Meeting Minutes

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 3/26/2020  3:55 PM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 3/26/2020  4:37 PM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 3/26/2020  4:43 PM
Development Review
Committee Secretary, DRC Approved 3/26/2020  4:45 PM



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
January 22, 2020

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the Development Review Committee (DRC) meeting to order at 4
p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Jack Haldeman
Danny Schmidt

Absent: 
Odessa Dowdy 

Staff in Attendance:
Ellen Cook, Principal Planner
Thomas Wysong, Senior Planner
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection
Katie Pelletier, Community Development Assistant

C. MINUTES

1. November 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster asked if there were any comments regarding the minutes.

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to Approve the November 20, 2019 minutes. The minutes
were approved by a unanimous voice vote of 30. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C190073. 2822 and 2896 Forge Road

Mr. Thomas Wysong addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Hawley Smith has applied
for an exception to Section 1973 of the Subdivision Ordinance, which requires for all minor
subdivisions of three or more lots to limit direct access from the existing road to one shared
driveway. 

Mr. Wysong said Mr. Smith is proposing to modify the driveway access for this subdivision
that was recommended by the DRC and approved by the Planning Commission in November
2019, which permitted one shared driveway between “New Parcel 1” and “New Parcel 2”
and one driveway to serve “New Parcel 3.”

Page 1 of 3



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
January 22, 2020

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the Development Review Committee (DRC) meeting to order at 4
p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Jack Haldeman
Danny Schmidt

Absent: 
Odessa Dowdy 

Staff in Attendance:
Ellen Cook, Principal Planner
Thomas Wysong, Senior Planner
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection
Katie Pelletier, Community Development Assistant

C. MINUTES

1. November 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster asked if there were any comments regarding the minutes.

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to Approve the November 20, 2019 minutes. The minutes
were approved by a unanimous voice vote of 30. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C190073. 2822 and 2896 Forge Road

Mr. Thomas Wysong addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Hawley Smith has applied
for an exception to Section 1973 of the Subdivision Ordinance, which requires for all minor
subdivisions of three or more lots to limit direct access from the existing road to one shared
driveway. 

Mr. Wysong said Mr. Smith is proposing to modify the driveway access for this subdivision
that was recommended by the DRC and approved by the Planning Commission in November
2019, which permitted one shared driveway between “New Parcel 1” and “New Parcel 2”
and one driveway to serve “New Parcel 3.”

Mr. Wysong stated that in this proposal, “New Parcel 2” would share access with the existing
driveway on the Boelt property via a 50foot by 50foot access easement. He noted, per the
original DRC recommendation, the driveway approved for “New Parcel 1” would remain in
place, as well as the driveway approved for “New Parcel 3” (with the understanding that the
applicant hopes to access this parcel in the future via a shared driveway with the Martin Farm
Estates neighborhood). 

Mr. Wysong said staff continues to find that the request does not meet the required exception
criteria in the Ordinance. He said, for this reason, staff recommends the DRC recommend
denial of the exception request to the Planning Commission. However, he noted that when
compared with the exception request previously approved by the DRC, staff finds this
proposal does help achieve the intent of reducing the number of driveways along Forge Road
by permitting a maximum of two new driveways, which is the outcome achieved by the
previous DRC recommendation. 

Mr. Wysong stated that should the DRC be inclined to consider approving an exception to the
Ordinance, staff recommends that the DRC consider requiring the shared driveway for the
Boelt property and “New Parcel 2” be built to the standards specified in Section 1973 (b) of
the Subdivision Ordinance. 

Mr. Wysong stated that he and Mr. Smith, attending the meeting by phone, were available for
any questions. 

Mr. Haldeman asked Mr. Smith if he had considered having the driveway for Parcel No. 1 go
to the right and connect to the Boelt driveway. 

Mr. Smith replied they envisioned direct entry and preferred a straight driveway approach to
the home site for that lot. 

Mr. Polster asked about the shared driveway requirements for minor subdivisions and whether
the impervious surface would increase. 

Mr. Juan Carlos Morgado replied the shared driveway should be paved. 

Mr. Wysong read (b) of Section 1973, “such driveway shall have a paved surface at least ten
feet wide consisting of 2 inches of pavement over 46 inches of stone aggregate.”

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked Mr. Smith if he preferred to put in a gravel driveway. 

Mr. Smith said yes, he preferred stone aggregate for stability, but not to pave the driveway. 

Mr. Morgado stated that, from a Stormwater perspective, there is no difference between a
gravel or paved surface and that both are considered 100% impervious, because over time
gravel compacts the soil. He said a gravel driveway would require more maintenance. 

Ms. Ellen Cook noted the driveway is perpendicular to Forge Road and either type of surface
would create the same amount of impervious surface area. She said the staff recommendation
is to adhere to the Subdivision Ordinance as much as possible.

Mr. Polster noted exceptions have been made. He asked if there were additional questions for
the applicant or other discussion items from the Committee.

Mr. Schmidt said that given the rural character of the area and the addition of only one new
driveway, he would approve the applicant’s preference for either a gravel or paved driveway.  

Page 2 of 3



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
January 22, 2020

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the Development Review Committee (DRC) meeting to order at 4
p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Jack Haldeman
Danny Schmidt

Absent: 
Odessa Dowdy 

Staff in Attendance:
Ellen Cook, Principal Planner
Thomas Wysong, Senior Planner
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection
Katie Pelletier, Community Development Assistant

C. MINUTES

1. November 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster asked if there were any comments regarding the minutes.

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to Approve the November 20, 2019 minutes. The minutes
were approved by a unanimous voice vote of 30. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C190073. 2822 and 2896 Forge Road

Mr. Thomas Wysong addressed the Committee and stated that Mr. Hawley Smith has applied
for an exception to Section 1973 of the Subdivision Ordinance, which requires for all minor
subdivisions of three or more lots to limit direct access from the existing road to one shared
driveway. 

Mr. Wysong said Mr. Smith is proposing to modify the driveway access for this subdivision
that was recommended by the DRC and approved by the Planning Commission in November
2019, which permitted one shared driveway between “New Parcel 1” and “New Parcel 2”
and one driveway to serve “New Parcel 3.”

Mr. Wysong stated that in this proposal, “New Parcel 2” would share access with the existing
driveway on the Boelt property via a 50foot by 50foot access easement. He noted, per the
original DRC recommendation, the driveway approved for “New Parcel 1” would remain in
place, as well as the driveway approved for “New Parcel 3” (with the understanding that the
applicant hopes to access this parcel in the future via a shared driveway with the Martin Farm
Estates neighborhood). 

Mr. Wysong said staff continues to find that the request does not meet the required exception
criteria in the Ordinance. He said, for this reason, staff recommends the DRC recommend
denial of the exception request to the Planning Commission. However, he noted that when
compared with the exception request previously approved by the DRC, staff finds this
proposal does help achieve the intent of reducing the number of driveways along Forge Road
by permitting a maximum of two new driveways, which is the outcome achieved by the
previous DRC recommendation. 

Mr. Wysong stated that should the DRC be inclined to consider approving an exception to the
Ordinance, staff recommends that the DRC consider requiring the shared driveway for the
Boelt property and “New Parcel 2” be built to the standards specified in Section 1973 (b) of
the Subdivision Ordinance. 

Mr. Wysong stated that he and Mr. Smith, attending the meeting by phone, were available for
any questions. 

Mr. Haldeman asked Mr. Smith if he had considered having the driveway for Parcel No. 1 go
to the right and connect to the Boelt driveway. 

Mr. Smith replied they envisioned direct entry and preferred a straight driveway approach to
the home site for that lot. 

Mr. Polster asked about the shared driveway requirements for minor subdivisions and whether
the impervious surface would increase. 

Mr. Juan Carlos Morgado replied the shared driveway should be paved. 

Mr. Wysong read (b) of Section 1973, “such driveway shall have a paved surface at least ten
feet wide consisting of 2 inches of pavement over 46 inches of stone aggregate.”

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked Mr. Smith if he preferred to put in a gravel driveway. 

Mr. Smith said yes, he preferred stone aggregate for stability, but not to pave the driveway. 

Mr. Morgado stated that, from a Stormwater perspective, there is no difference between a
gravel or paved surface and that both are considered 100% impervious, because over time
gravel compacts the soil. He said a gravel driveway would require more maintenance. 

Ms. Ellen Cook noted the driveway is perpendicular to Forge Road and either type of surface
would create the same amount of impervious surface area. She said the staff recommendation
is to adhere to the Subdivision Ordinance as much as possible.

Mr. Polster noted exceptions have been made. He asked if there were additional questions for
the applicant or other discussion items from the Committee.

Mr. Schmidt said that given the rural character of the area and the addition of only one new
driveway, he would approve the applicant’s preference for either a gravel or paved driveway.  

Mr. Polster asked for a motion. 

Mr. Smith asked if the option for gravel or pavement could be included in the motion. He said
Mr. Boelt’s gravel driveway is wellestablished and serving the area quite well. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman motioned to recommend Approval of Case No. C190073, 2822 and
2896 Forge Road, with proposed modifications to the previously approved driveway access
and either a gravel or paved driveway.  

The motion was approved by a unanimous voice vote of 30.  

F. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Polster thanked everyone for attending the meeting. 

Mr. Haldeman motioned to Adjourn the meeting.

Mr. Polster adjourned the meeting at 4:15 p.m. after a unanimous voice vote of 30. 

Page 3 of 3

kpelletier
Typewritten Text
      Mr. Frank Polster, Chair

kpelletier
Typewritten Text
Mr. Paul Holt, Secretary

kpelletier
Line

kpelletier
Line



AGENDA ITEM NO. C.2.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 4/1/2020 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Paul D. Holt, III, Secretary

SUBJECT: February 19, 2020 Meeting Minutes

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type
Minutes of the Febrary 19, 2020
DRC Meeting Minutes

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 3/26/2020  3:55 PM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 3/26/2020  4:38 PM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 3/26/2020  4:42 PM
Development Review
Committee Secretary, DRC Approved 3/26/2020  4:45 PM



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
February 19, 2020

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the Development Review Committee (DRC) meeting to order at 4
p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Jack Haldeman

Staff in Attendance:
Jose Riberio, Senior Planner
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection
Carla Brittle, Recreation Centers Administrator
Alister Perkinson, Park Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. January 22, 2020 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster stated they would delay the Approval of Minutes until there could be a quorum at
the next meeting. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. Case No. C190100. Shaping Our Shores Update

Mr. Jose Riberio addressed the Committee and stated that the Board of Supervisors (BOS)
endorsed the Shaping Our Shores (SOS) Narrative Document and Master Plan in June 2009.
He said this was done in order to guide the revitalization and development of three James City
County (JCC) waterfront park facilities: Chickahominy Riverfront Park, Jamestown Beach
Event Park and the Jamestown Marina.

Mr. Riberio explained that over 10 years have passed since the original document and plan,
and now the SOS Master Plan is being updated. He said revisions have been made to the
Master Plan for each of the facilities, and these revised Master Plans will be considered for
adoption by the Planning Commission and BOS in the near future.

Mr. Riberio stated that, prior to consideration by the full Planning Commission, the Parks and
Recreation Department staff requested this item be placed on the DRC agenda in order to
discuss the update and obtain input from the DRC members. He noted that no action by the
DRC is required.

Page 1 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
February 19, 2020

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the Development Review Committee (DRC) meeting to order at 4
p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Jack Haldeman

Staff in Attendance:
Jose Riberio, Senior Planner
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection
Carla Brittle, Recreation Centers Administrator
Alister Perkinson, Park Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. January 22, 2020 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster stated they would delay the Approval of Minutes until there could be a quorum at
the next meeting. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. Case No. C190100. Shaping Our Shores Update

Mr. Jose Riberio addressed the Committee and stated that the Board of Supervisors (BOS)
endorsed the Shaping Our Shores (SOS) Narrative Document and Master Plan in June 2009.
He said this was done in order to guide the revitalization and development of three James City
County (JCC) waterfront park facilities: Chickahominy Riverfront Park, Jamestown Beach
Event Park and the Jamestown Marina.

Mr. Riberio explained that over 10 years have passed since the original document and plan,
and now the SOS Master Plan is being updated. He said revisions have been made to the
Master Plan for each of the facilities, and these revised Master Plans will be considered for
adoption by the Planning Commission and BOS in the near future.

Mr. Riberio stated that, prior to consideration by the full Planning Commission, the Parks and
Recreation Department staff requested this item be placed on the DRC agenda in order to
discuss the update and obtain input from the DRC members. He noted that no action by the
DRC is required.

Mr. Riberio explained that once the SOS update has been reviewed and endorsed by the
BOS, applications will be submitted to amend existing Special Use Permits for Chickahominy
Riverfront Park and Jamestown Beach Event Park to reflect the changes proposed by the
SOS Master Plan update.

Mr. Riberio introduced staff present at the meeting from the Parks and Recreation
Department:  Ms. Carla Brittle, Recreation Centers Administrator, and Mr. Alister Perkinson,
Park Administrator. Mr. Riberio said they have been working together throughout the process
and would be happy to answer any questions from the Committee. He said they could also
present and discusses changes made to each of the Master Plans and answer any questions. 

Mr. Polster asked if there were any questions. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman asked for a brief presentation and asked if the collapsing bulkheads had
been taken care of at the marina. 

Ms. Brittle explained the bulkhead improvements are part of a project currently in the bid
process for work completion in the fall. 

Mr. Haldeman asked if the funds had been approved in a previous Capital Improvements
Program (CIP) process. 

Ms. Brittle confirmed the funds have already been approved for the project. 

Mr. Haldeman asked about the staff office at the marina. 

Ms. Brittle stated there is currently a staff office at the marina which will be torn down and
relocated out of the flood plain area. 

Mr. Perkinson noted the office serves two uses. He said staff runs a rental operation there and 
also operates a maintenance lease.  

Mr. Haldeman said the usage at the marina will not change, except for the new restaurant. 

Mr. Haldeman then asked for a short overview of each project.

Ms. Brittle presented first the proposed Master Plan update for Chickahominy Riverfront
Park. She said the biggest change is the addition of the James City Service Authority Water
Treatment Plant. She showed the location of the building and buried input and output lines. 

Mr. Haldeman asked why the park was chosen as the location for the plant. 

Ms. Brittle explained there were three options under consideration, but the project would take
and treat water from the river as a future water source. She said the option is very expensive,
but the land space would be held for the potential project use. 

Ms. Brittle said they are also relocating the boat and recreational vehicle storage area to the
front corner of the park and removing a second unnecessary entrance to the park. 

She said there are new camper amenities, an additional rowing building and room for camping
sales, rentals and summer camp operations. 

Mr. Polster said he appreciated the level of detail given and complimented the cooperation
between staff. 

Page 2 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
February 19, 2020

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the Development Review Committee (DRC) meeting to order at 4
p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Jack Haldeman

Staff in Attendance:
Jose Riberio, Senior Planner
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection
Carla Brittle, Recreation Centers Administrator
Alister Perkinson, Park Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. January 22, 2020 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster stated they would delay the Approval of Minutes until there could be a quorum at
the next meeting. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. Case No. C190100. Shaping Our Shores Update

Mr. Jose Riberio addressed the Committee and stated that the Board of Supervisors (BOS)
endorsed the Shaping Our Shores (SOS) Narrative Document and Master Plan in June 2009.
He said this was done in order to guide the revitalization and development of three James City
County (JCC) waterfront park facilities: Chickahominy Riverfront Park, Jamestown Beach
Event Park and the Jamestown Marina.

Mr. Riberio explained that over 10 years have passed since the original document and plan,
and now the SOS Master Plan is being updated. He said revisions have been made to the
Master Plan for each of the facilities, and these revised Master Plans will be considered for
adoption by the Planning Commission and BOS in the near future.

Mr. Riberio stated that, prior to consideration by the full Planning Commission, the Parks and
Recreation Department staff requested this item be placed on the DRC agenda in order to
discuss the update and obtain input from the DRC members. He noted that no action by the
DRC is required.

Mr. Riberio explained that once the SOS update has been reviewed and endorsed by the
BOS, applications will be submitted to amend existing Special Use Permits for Chickahominy
Riverfront Park and Jamestown Beach Event Park to reflect the changes proposed by the
SOS Master Plan update.

Mr. Riberio introduced staff present at the meeting from the Parks and Recreation
Department:  Ms. Carla Brittle, Recreation Centers Administrator, and Mr. Alister Perkinson,
Park Administrator. Mr. Riberio said they have been working together throughout the process
and would be happy to answer any questions from the Committee. He said they could also
present and discusses changes made to each of the Master Plans and answer any questions. 

Mr. Polster asked if there were any questions. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman asked for a brief presentation and asked if the collapsing bulkheads had
been taken care of at the marina. 

Ms. Brittle explained the bulkhead improvements are part of a project currently in the bid
process for work completion in the fall. 

Mr. Haldeman asked if the funds had been approved in a previous Capital Improvements
Program (CIP) process. 

Ms. Brittle confirmed the funds have already been approved for the project. 

Mr. Haldeman asked about the staff office at the marina. 

Ms. Brittle stated there is currently a staff office at the marina which will be torn down and
relocated out of the flood plain area. 

Mr. Perkinson noted the office serves two uses. He said staff runs a rental operation there and 
also operates a maintenance lease.  

Mr. Haldeman said the usage at the marina will not change, except for the new restaurant. 

Mr. Haldeman then asked for a short overview of each project.

Ms. Brittle presented first the proposed Master Plan update for Chickahominy Riverfront
Park. She said the biggest change is the addition of the James City Service Authority Water
Treatment Plant. She showed the location of the building and buried input and output lines. 

Mr. Haldeman asked why the park was chosen as the location for the plant. 

Ms. Brittle explained there were three options under consideration, but the project would take
and treat water from the river as a future water source. She said the option is very expensive,
but the land space would be held for the potential project use. 

Ms. Brittle said they are also relocating the boat and recreational vehicle storage area to the
front corner of the park and removing a second unnecessary entrance to the park. 

She said there are new camper amenities, an additional rowing building and room for camping
sales, rentals and summer camp operations. 

Mr. Polster said he appreciated the level of detail given and complimented the cooperation
between staff. 

Mr. Polster asked if they had any comments from his previous note and question regarding sea
level rise. 

Mr. Perkinson said they took into consideration the boundaries of the flood plain and
Resource Protection Area. For one particular area, he said they hope for walk or bikein
only access for some camping or water sports. 

Mr. Polster said there will be new elevation data for the County to take under consideration as
these projects enter future CIP and site plan approval processes. 

Ms. Brittle then presented Master Plan updates for the Jamestown Beach Event Park. She
said this plan had the most changes from the original after improvements were made to the
beach. She said there are limitations in the language of the grants used to purchase the
property as well from an archaeology standpoint. 

Ms. Brittle said they will relocate the fishing pier off the Virginia Department of Transportation
(VDOT) property near the ferry to the upper end of the beach. She said there will be
additional restrooms and parking for events and beach patrons. She said there will be a new,
semipermanent event tent and new road alignments to improve summer traffic issues. 

Mr. Haldeman asked if VDOT had looked at the plan yet.

Mr. Riberio replied yes, VDOT had reviewed the conceptual plan with no objections. He said
traffic impact studies would also be required. 

Mr. Haldeman asked about the parking improvements.

Mr. Riberio said the grass parking would be updated with pervious pavers.

Ms. Brittle explained other updates to the parking plan and said repaving the entrance area
was already a priority for funding. She said a new renting center would replace the existing
building near the entrance. She said longterm boat storage would move from the marina to an
area inside the Jamestown Beach Event Park. 

Ms. Brittle said they hope to continue a camping option at Jamestown Beach and may request
proposals for the building of private rental cabins for event guests. 

Ms. Brittle then presented changes to the Master Plan for the Jamestown Marina. She said
much of the original SOS plan was not feasible at the marina given the RPA, wetlands and
flood plains. Development of a boat ramp and boat slips were removed, as well as plans for
condominiums, a hotel and retail shops which were not endorsed by the BOS.

Ms. Brittle mentioned again the relocation of the marina staff office building and said they also
relocated the proposed restaurant and food service area out of the flood plain. She said they
relocated the boat ramp. 

Ms. Brittle stated there will be additional shortterm trailer parking and a second entrance with
additional visitor parking. She said there will be a semipermanent event tent for use by the
brewery. 

Mr. Polster asked about the stormwater runoff from the parking lot, given the contours. 

Mr. Juan Carlos Morgado replied he had not reviewed this particular conceptual drawing, but
more stormwater improvements would likely be necessary. 

Page 3 of 4



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
February 19, 2020

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Frank Polster called the Development Review Committee (DRC) meeting to order at 4
p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Frank Polster, Chair
Jack Haldeman

Staff in Attendance:
Jose Riberio, Senior Planner
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Juan Carlos Morgado, Stormwater and Resource Protection
Carla Brittle, Recreation Centers Administrator
Alister Perkinson, Park Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. January 22, 2020 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Polster stated they would delay the Approval of Minutes until there could be a quorum at
the next meeting. 

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. Case No. C190100. Shaping Our Shores Update

Mr. Jose Riberio addressed the Committee and stated that the Board of Supervisors (BOS)
endorsed the Shaping Our Shores (SOS) Narrative Document and Master Plan in June 2009.
He said this was done in order to guide the revitalization and development of three James City
County (JCC) waterfront park facilities: Chickahominy Riverfront Park, Jamestown Beach
Event Park and the Jamestown Marina.

Mr. Riberio explained that over 10 years have passed since the original document and plan,
and now the SOS Master Plan is being updated. He said revisions have been made to the
Master Plan for each of the facilities, and these revised Master Plans will be considered for
adoption by the Planning Commission and BOS in the near future.

Mr. Riberio stated that, prior to consideration by the full Planning Commission, the Parks and
Recreation Department staff requested this item be placed on the DRC agenda in order to
discuss the update and obtain input from the DRC members. He noted that no action by the
DRC is required.

Mr. Riberio explained that once the SOS update has been reviewed and endorsed by the
BOS, applications will be submitted to amend existing Special Use Permits for Chickahominy
Riverfront Park and Jamestown Beach Event Park to reflect the changes proposed by the
SOS Master Plan update.

Mr. Riberio introduced staff present at the meeting from the Parks and Recreation
Department:  Ms. Carla Brittle, Recreation Centers Administrator, and Mr. Alister Perkinson,
Park Administrator. Mr. Riberio said they have been working together throughout the process
and would be happy to answer any questions from the Committee. He said they could also
present and discusses changes made to each of the Master Plans and answer any questions. 

Mr. Polster asked if there were any questions. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman asked for a brief presentation and asked if the collapsing bulkheads had
been taken care of at the marina. 

Ms. Brittle explained the bulkhead improvements are part of a project currently in the bid
process for work completion in the fall. 

Mr. Haldeman asked if the funds had been approved in a previous Capital Improvements
Program (CIP) process. 

Ms. Brittle confirmed the funds have already been approved for the project. 

Mr. Haldeman asked about the staff office at the marina. 

Ms. Brittle stated there is currently a staff office at the marina which will be torn down and
relocated out of the flood plain area. 

Mr. Perkinson noted the office serves two uses. He said staff runs a rental operation there and 
also operates a maintenance lease.  

Mr. Haldeman said the usage at the marina will not change, except for the new restaurant. 

Mr. Haldeman then asked for a short overview of each project.

Ms. Brittle presented first the proposed Master Plan update for Chickahominy Riverfront
Park. She said the biggest change is the addition of the James City Service Authority Water
Treatment Plant. She showed the location of the building and buried input and output lines. 

Mr. Haldeman asked why the park was chosen as the location for the plant. 

Ms. Brittle explained there were three options under consideration, but the project would take
and treat water from the river as a future water source. She said the option is very expensive,
but the land space would be held for the potential project use. 

Ms. Brittle said they are also relocating the boat and recreational vehicle storage area to the
front corner of the park and removing a second unnecessary entrance to the park. 

She said there are new camper amenities, an additional rowing building and room for camping
sales, rentals and summer camp operations. 

Mr. Polster said he appreciated the level of detail given and complimented the cooperation
between staff. 

Mr. Polster asked if they had any comments from his previous note and question regarding sea
level rise. 

Mr. Perkinson said they took into consideration the boundaries of the flood plain and
Resource Protection Area. For one particular area, he said they hope for walk or bikein
only access for some camping or water sports. 

Mr. Polster said there will be new elevation data for the County to take under consideration as
these projects enter future CIP and site plan approval processes. 

Ms. Brittle then presented Master Plan updates for the Jamestown Beach Event Park. She
said this plan had the most changes from the original after improvements were made to the
beach. She said there are limitations in the language of the grants used to purchase the
property as well from an archaeology standpoint. 

Ms. Brittle said they will relocate the fishing pier off the Virginia Department of Transportation
(VDOT) property near the ferry to the upper end of the beach. She said there will be
additional restrooms and parking for events and beach patrons. She said there will be a new,
semipermanent event tent and new road alignments to improve summer traffic issues. 

Mr. Haldeman asked if VDOT had looked at the plan yet.

Mr. Riberio replied yes, VDOT had reviewed the conceptual plan with no objections. He said
traffic impact studies would also be required. 

Mr. Haldeman asked about the parking improvements.

Mr. Riberio said the grass parking would be updated with pervious pavers.

Ms. Brittle explained other updates to the parking plan and said repaving the entrance area
was already a priority for funding. She said a new renting center would replace the existing
building near the entrance. She said longterm boat storage would move from the marina to an
area inside the Jamestown Beach Event Park. 

Ms. Brittle said they hope to continue a camping option at Jamestown Beach and may request
proposals for the building of private rental cabins for event guests. 

Ms. Brittle then presented changes to the Master Plan for the Jamestown Marina. She said
much of the original SOS plan was not feasible at the marina given the RPA, wetlands and
flood plains. Development of a boat ramp and boat slips were removed, as well as plans for
condominiums, a hotel and retail shops which were not endorsed by the BOS.

Ms. Brittle mentioned again the relocation of the marina staff office building and said they also
relocated the proposed restaurant and food service area out of the flood plain. She said they
relocated the boat ramp. 

Ms. Brittle stated there will be additional shortterm trailer parking and a second entrance with
additional visitor parking. She said there will be a semipermanent event tent for use by the
brewery. 

Mr. Polster asked about the stormwater runoff from the parking lot, given the contours. 

Mr. Juan Carlos Morgado replied he had not reviewed this particular conceptual drawing, but
more stormwater improvements would likely be necessary. 

Mr. Polster asked if the bulkhead improvement project at the marina also included dredging. 

Mr. Perkinson replied yes, it would be taken across by truck to the Jamestown Beach Event
Park. He said there are two phases, beginning with dredging of the channel followed by the
covered boat slip area to integrate the Living Shoreline project. 

Mr. Riberio asked if there were any additional questions.

Mr. Haldeman thanked the staff for their presentations and said the information was very
helpful. 

F. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Polster thanked everyone for attending the meeting. 

Mr. Haldeman motioned to Adjourn the meeting.

Mr. Polster adjourned the meeting at 4:30 p.m. after a unanimous voice vote of 20. 

Page 4 of 4

kpelletier
Typewritten Text
      Mr. Frank Polster, Chair

kpelletier
Typewritten Text
Mr. Paul Holt, Secretary

kpelletier
Line

kpelletier
Line



AGENDA ITEM NO. E.1.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 4/1/2020 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner II

SUBJECT: SITE PLAN200012. Axe Throwing Lanes Facility at Freedom Park

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Staff Report Staff Report
Attachment No.1. Location Map Backup Material
Attachment No. 2. Adopted Master
Plan ( SUP00112004/MP0003
2004)

Backup Material

Attachment No.3..Adopted SUP
Conditions (SUP00112004/MP
00032004)

Backup Material

Attachment No.4. Exhibit Showing
Location of Proposed Axe Throwing
Lane Facility

Backup Material

Attachment No.5.Site Plan Backup Material

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 3/26/2020  10:50 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 3/26/2020  11:18 AM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 3/26/2020  11:51 AM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 3/26/2020  12:33 PM



SITE PLAN-20-0012. Axe Throwing Lanes Facility at Freedom Park 

Staff Report for the April 1, 2020, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 1 of 2 

SUMMARY FACTS 

 

Applicant: Mr. Michael Staley of Go Ape 

 

Land Owner: James City County 

 

Proposal: To allow the placement of ± 384 square-feet 

axe throwing lane facility at Freedom Park  

 

Location: 5537 Centerville Road 

 

Tax Map/Parcel No.: 3010100009 

 

Project Acreage: ± 675 acres 

 

Current Zoning:  PL, Public Land 

 

Comprehensive Plan: Park, Public, or Semi-Public Open Space 

 

Primary Service Area: Outside 

 

Staff Contact:  Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner II 

 

REASON FOR PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

 

The adopted Special Use Permit (SUP) conditions for this 

development (SUP-0011-2004/MP-0003) require Development 

Review Committee (DRC) review of any proposed changes to the 

Master Plan for Freedom Park for general consistency.  

 

FACTORS FAVORABLE 

 

1. Staff finds the proposal will not negatively impact surrounding 

development. 

 

2. Staff finds the nature of the proposed facility to be generally 

consistent with sports and/or recreational uses accessory to a 

park. 

 

3. The proposal will not create additional impervious surface and 

does not propose lighting or utility changes. 

 

FACTORS UNFAVORABLE 

 

1. Staff finds no unfavorable factors associated with this proposal. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the DRC find this proposal consistent with the 

adopted master plan and recommend approval of this request to the 

Planning Commission. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

Mr. Michael Staley has submitted a site plan (Attachment No. 5) for 

the placement of an axe throwing lane facility of ± 384 square feet at 

Freedom Park. The proposed facility will be located next to the Ropes 

Courses (Attachment No. 4) within an area currently leased to Go Ape 

to run its operations (i.e., zip line and treetop obstacles.)  

 

No additional impervious surface is being proposed since the throwing 

lanes are not an enclosed building and there is an existing parking area 

nearby. The applicant has also indicated that there will be no new 

utilities and no outdoor lighting associated with this project.   

 

According to the applicant, the area for the proposed facility was 

selected to reduce impact on the tree canopy and only a small number 

(4-6) of trees of any size will need to be removed. According to a 

comment letter issued by the Stormwater and Resource Protection 

Division, any vegetated area disturbed for completion of this project 



SITE PLAN-20-0012. Axe Throwing Lanes Facility at Freedom Park 

Staff Report for the April 1, 2020, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 2 of 2 

must be replaced in kind. A landscape plan for the proposed facility 

will be required to be reviewed and approved as part of the site plan 

application. 

 

The adopted master plan (Attachment No. 2) does not identify a 

specific use in the general area where the axe throwing facility is 

proposed. Further, staff finds that the nature of the proposed facility 

to be generally consistent with sports and/or recreational uses 

accessory to a park. Staff finds the proposed axe throwing facility to 

be generally consistent with the adopted master plan for Freedom Park 

Master Plan as it does not change the basic concept or character of the 

development. 

 

PROJECT HISTORY 
 

• SUP-0026-2000. On January 23, 2001, the Board of Supervisors 

adopted a resolution for the development of a district park. 
 

• SUP-0011-2004/MP-0003-2004. On July 27, 2004, the Board of 

Supervisors approved amendments to the Master Plan and SUP 

conditions for Freedom Park.  
 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

The parcel is zoned PL and designated as Park, Public, or Semi-Public 

Open Space on the 2035 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map. The 

project site is surrounded to the north, northeast, and west by parcels 

zoned A-1, General Agriculture, which include a variety of uses 

including residential and the School Operations building. Parcels 

across Centerville Road (Forest Glen and Burton Woods) are zoned 

R-2, General Residential, and R-5, Multifamily Residential. The 

surrounding parcels are designated Rural Lands, with the exception of 

the County landfill which is designated federal, state, and County land, 

and the properties between Freedom Park and Centerville Road, which 

are designated Low Density Residential. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the DRC find this proposal consistent with the 

adopted master plan and recommend approval of this request to the 

Planning Commission. 

 

 

 

JR/md 

SP20-12AxeThrow-FP 

 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 

2. Adopted Freedom Park Master Plan ( SUP-0011-2004/MP-0003-

2004) 

3. Adopted SUP Conditions ( SUP-0011-2004/MP-0003-2004) 

4. Exhibit  showing location of proposed axe throwing lanes facility  

5. Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SP-20-0012
Axe Throwing Lanes Facility at Freedom Park



1,100 0 1,100 2,200 3,300550
Feet

Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia.  The data contained herein are the property 
of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  Distribution of any of these data to anyone not 
licensed by the Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.

Freedom Park

Blayton E.S. and Hornsby M.S.

Centerville Road

Forest Glen

Approximate Location of proposed
 Axe Throwing Lane Facility



/
/

,Z/

Restroorns
con’ftititie, ,€tnoins, office mcethig roomstoragc

17fOflflJtWfl}4(e

f/fistorica( 4na #1

,
\___________ JIikjng Trail

/‘

l_
‘\

.) --‘J

.

Tennis Cowu
3askçs6affCoisrts
(1iuf1n1j
F1xgrouifumfOjei akyv
lniSuicuicrs

VnvroaramineOven
Qicnie)ra Opcn f*af(?Ws, Traili

‘-7

,4

11f1ra9

1L
¶1

VnprograrnmeiOpen Space !

qqzqxDo:4/t

I
I

‘I
:

.

L

Vi11-H’na1/11,11nof( Oven . cvace
1cni)Irra, Opan 1er1vwa Trailc

I1
I, i

a

/

“N .
/ -

County ‘ • . , — I.

Swarnp

Lanéfi((

‘p

;:):3:.:

(4)ater-6aseicRecreatioiz f4rea

(Pni 12Irea #1
(iiijng)fraa
Ticnic)LrcasandWatura Iraif
Slirfters with ratma,n

(Pi1ni 2lrea #2

InSrprthw Center
1itring.4,ra
.c(enic
9faturn’ftai4

/

/7

sveda.tveitts Area
/;;cntc)fre4 Opeit fead,u’, Tmil.l
/Ii’kIng
PoffeyüdlCwas

:
I •
I. \
II \;
1 Ys‘Picnic :4i-a #3

4auatic cRecreation

qt:4tg5hra
niçreosand9latnreTraiU
)tmpfiutliaiter
/?(aygmtuius

Jfistorica(Area #3
ofianaryrt,fe uf3pencer Ord’nary (1781)

Iieteqnwt&st1tras
‘Fitnic)1rr Open 9eadoea Traih

•1

S
/

(__/
J

8trkjngSf tea

/1tcnicre43anéWatura Trailt
Seulmnqg8,tjtmt,rn

::::m::;:::

Area

j 1 ‘I ,

‘Nayjvoiiii

nJ ‘ ‘‘ i;
%..

....e
.‘ ,-

-‘_;
.3

:• ‘-

,J. I ;:
‘

a

.-- a ..

1 •‘

:

Itip• /

istonca( rea #2 ctive ecreation rca
.Sc(l& 1 ‘=300’J7?t CentusycDotniile a:t1Qut6u&utjs (1 610-1 730)

//JcQn$ttt/ctieIt af’Pe,icf3i’o,ae
Ittterpictive)treos
Ptcnic)l,ra, Open 3tcadrw Trails

‘First Fres’Bfac&Setslc,nunt (1803)

Inicrprstivc3sias
‘Itcnic)trea. Open 01ealswa Trails

t— ‘ I

0’ 3oa 650



r’ii . •

RESOLUTION

CASE NOS. SUP-i 1-04 & MASTER PLAN 3-04. FREEDOM PARK MASTER PLAN

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of James City County has adopted by ordinance, specific landuses that shall be subjected to a special use permit process; and

WHEREAS, public recreation facilities are a specially permitted use in the A-i, General Agricultural,zoning district; and

WHEREAS, the properties are identified as Parcel Nos. (1-6), (1-9), and (1-10) on James City CountyReal Estate Tax Map No. (3 1-3); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 1 5 .2-2204 of the Code of Virginia, and Section 24-15 of theJames City County Zoning Ordinance, a public hearing was advertised, adj acent propertyowners notified, and a hearing scheduled for Case Nos. SUP-i 1-04 and MP-3-04; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission ofJames City County, following its public hearing on June 7,2004, recommended approval of Case Nos. SUP-i 1-04 and MP-3-04 by a vote of 7-0.

NOW, THEREFORE, BElT RESOLVED thatthe Board ofSupervisors ofJames City County, Virginia,does hereby approve Master PlanNo. 3-04 and the issuance ofSpecialUse PermitNo. 17-03 as described herein with the following conditions:

1 . Development of the site shall be generally in accordance with the Freedom ParkMaster Plan dated April 2004 with such minor changes as the Development ReviewCommittee determines does not change the basic concept or character of thedevelopment.

2. Prior to issuance ofa land disturbing permit for any portion ofthe site, the applicantshall provide written evidence to the County which demonstrates that therecommendations of a professional archaeologist have been implemented in amanner consistent with the preservation objectives of the Board of SupervisorsArchaeological Policy, as determined by the Planning Director or his designee.

3 . A minimum 1 50-foot buffer shall be maintained along all property lines ofthe parksite. That buffer shall remain undisturbed with the exception ofbreaks for roadwaysand pedestrian connections, utilities, walking, hiking, and biking trails, and otheruses specifically approved by the Development Review Committee.

4. All road improvements recommended by atraffic study conducted by Buchart-Horn,Inc., in January 2000 shall be constructed in accordance with development plansapproved by the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT).

5. The applicant shall submit a traffic impact study to the County within three years ofthe date of approval of this application, unless a study is required by VDOT prior tothat date. VDOT shall have the authority to delay requiring the traffic study to besubmitted beyond the three-year time period ifconstruction ofthe proposed facilitiesat Freedom Park occurs at a slower pace than expected.



‘0

.

6. The applicant shall conduct a perennial stream evaluation and receive approval fromthe Environmental Director prior to preliminary site plan approval being granted forany of the following uses proposed for the site: Historical areas I , 2, and 3 ; Activerecreation area; “Hotwater Lake” as shown; and the Environmental EducationCenter. If perennial streams are present on the site, a 100-foot buffer will berequired around them and any wetlands contiguous and connected by surface flowto the stream.

7. This special use permit is not severable. Invalidation of any word, phrase, clause,sentence, or paragraph shall invalidate the remainder.

Chairman, Board of Supervisors
SUPERVISOR VOTEATTEST:

Jv
BRADSHAW AYE
HARRISON AYE

6__ BROWN AYE
NCGLENNON AYESan rd B. anner
GOOD SON AYEClerk to the Board

Adopted by the Board ofSupervisors ofJames City County, Virginia, this 27th day ofJuly,2004.

supl 1 -04_MP3-04_2.res



                               Attachment No.4 Proposed Location of Axe Throwing Facility  

 Aerial View showing the general location of the proposed axe throwing facility  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



                               Attachment No.4 Proposed Location of Axe Throwing Facility  

                   General location of proposed axe throwing facility overlaid on the adopted Master Plan 

  

 Approximate location of axe throwing lane facility  

 

 

 



Page 1 of 5

JRISINGER
Snapshot

tleininger
Text Box
SP-20-0012. 5537 Centerville Road-Outdoor Axe Throwing Lanes

tleininger
Arrow

tleininger
Text Box
N

tleininger
Text Box
Property InformationJames City County101-C Mounts Bay RoadWilliamsburg, VA 23187 PL Public Lands2035 Comp. Plan: Open Space and RecreationAcres: 593 acres

tleininger
Text Box
Project DescriptionAdding outdoor axe throwing lanes adjacent to the Go Ape tree top adventure course in Freedom Park

tleininger
Text Box
General Notes1. This site plan amends SP-0118-2011.2. No changes to water/sewer utilities.3. This plan proposes less than 2,500 sq. ft. of      disturbance.4. This site does not appear to be located in the      Resource Protection Area.5. This site does not appear to be located in the     special flood hazard area based on Flood          Insurance Rate Map 51095C0138D,                  effective 12/16/15.6. No outdoor lighting is proposed.7. Call Miss Utility at 811 to mark any utilities    prior to construction.8. Any new signs shall be in accordance with      Article II, Division 3 of the James City County     Zoning Ordinance.9. The proposed outdoor axe throwing lane is        approximately  24' x 16'. 10. Four to six trees of any size will need to be        removed.11. No new parking area is proposed. 

tleininger
Text Box
Sheet Index1. Cover Page2. Location Map3. Elevation 

tleininger
Text Box
Maps Not To Scale

JRISINGER
Site Plan Stamp



 



 


	Meeting Agenda
	January 22, 2020 Meeting Minutes
	February 19, 2020 Meeting Minutes
	SITE PLAN-20-0012. Axe Throwing Lanes Facility at Freedom Park

